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The Mrs. Mills Double House faces east on the west side of Railroad Avenue, 
diagonally across the street from H0-511, The William Bian's Two Frame Houses. It 
is a four bay wide, two room deep, two and a half story high, gabled roof (run­
ning north-south) frame double house, resting on a stone foundation with two 
very large square, central chimneys on the east and west sides of the apex of 
the roof, which holds two gabled roof dormer windows on the east and west ele­
vations. 

Entrances are located in the end bays with staircases leading to the floor 
above. A central dividing wall holds the two fireplaces per floor for each side 
of the house, with the basement holding cooking fireplaces for each half of the 
building. 

Presently in a dilapidated state of disrepair, the building's double-hung, 
six-over-six light, rectangular windows have been boarded up, as well as its 
entrances. 

Reputed to date to the eighteenth century, the building is noted as the pro­
perty of Mrs. Mills on the 1860 Martennet Map of Howard County. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Mrs. Mills Double House faces east on the west side of Railroad Avenue, 
diagonally across the street from H0-511, The William Bian's Two Frame Houses. It 
is a four bay wide, two room deep, two and a half story high, gabled roof (running 
north-south) frame double house, resting on a stone foundation,with two very large 
square, central chimneys on the east and west sides of the apex of the roof, which 
holds two gabled roof dormer windows on the east and west elevations. Entrances 
are located in the end bays,with staircases leading to the floor above. A central 
dividing wall holds the two fireplaces per floor for each side of the house, with 
the basement holding cooking fireplaces for each half of the building. Presently 
in a dilapidated state of disrepair, the building's double-hung six-over-six light 

' windows have been boarded up, as well as its entrances. In addition, it stands very 
close to the east side of the B & 0 Railroad Tracks and adjoins the railroad's 
property. Plans are presently under way to undertake an Historic American Build­
ings Survey of the structure. 
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The Mrs. Mills Double House is significant to Howard County and the State 
of Maryland architecturally,as an example of early American domestic,frame archi­
tecture, which furnished housing for two families and historically, as the property of a 
Mrs. Mills in 1860. 

Architecturally, the building is one of the most noteworthy in the village 
of Elk Ridge and unique in its design, which features two gabled roof dormer win­
dows on its east and west elevations, and two,very large,square,brick,central 
chimneys,which each furnish double fireplaces, inset into the dividing wall 
between the two houses. These two features, along with its fine proportion 
and scale,make it a noteworthy building. In addition, it is of interest in the 
history of housing in the United States,for it furnishes an early example of a 
frame,duplex structure,with cooking fireplaces in the basement,where the kitchens 
were located. 

Historically, the building is also of interest, being noted on the 1860 
Martennet Map, associated with a Mrs. Mills. The 1878 Hopkins' Atlas delineates 
it as a part of a large parcel of land on the east side of the Railroad owned by 
Mr. Thomas Pettit. Actually there is some question about the owner of the pro­
perty at this time. Owned by Joseph D. Pettit, a large landowner in Elkridge, 
the property was part of his estate, which was divided between his wife, Annie and 
their two children, Thomas and Annie Milling at his death. 

On September 6, 1877, Howard County Circuit Court decreed a partition of the 
estate with Annie E. Milling holding in severalty and not jointly or in common 
with Thomas F. Pettit several lots, among them the lot and improvements under 
consideration, H0-509. 

Referring to a case in Equity before the Circuit Court of Howard County 
on March 2, 1889 between Annie M. Pettit (widow of Joseph D. Pettit) vs. Annie 
E. Milling et al (daughter of Joseph D. Pettit), we find that Annie E. Milling 
was unable to keep up the property and had difficulty in paying the taxes on 
the property. Evidently these lots along the west side of Railroad Avenue, 
comprising both H0-509 and H0-510 were managed rather unsuccessfully by her or her 
brother, and the decision of the Court (please see Equity L.J.W. #19, folio 
155-194) was made to sell the property at public auction and divide the proceeds. 
This was accomplished by the trustees, Daniel Murray and Reuben Johnson on 
6 May, 1889. This lot is noted on the sale plat of the property (see attachment 5) 

"together with improvements", to Mr. Joseph H. Wyatt for $900. On page 160 
of the proceedings of the Case in Equity, Annie Milling states that the improve­
ments on lot 113 (see attachment 5 - Sale Plat) "and on said remaining lots" 
(H0-510) "are all old • • . "It was further stated that the latter are fast 
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"falling into ruin and decay". We then have testimony from these proceedings of 
1889 that the buildings, H0-509 and H0-510 were old at this time. 

To establish a building date for "old", however, is difficult to say the 
least. In an interview with Mr. Toomey, present owner of H0-509, the Mrs. Mills 
Double House, Mr. Toomey stated that it was his belief that the building dates 
from the eighteenth century. He referred to a title search undertaken by Daniel 
Murray for his father, Charles Toomey. Conservatively, the building dates from 
circa 1820. Such a date may be established by some of the following archi­
tectural features: its large cooking fireplaces, the scale and proportions of 
the building, as well as its dormer windows, and double-hung six-over-six light 
windows. 

Historically and architecturally noteworthy to Howard County and the State 
of Maryland, The Mrs. Mills Double House should be placed, in conjunction with the 
Railroad Avenue Historic District, on the National Register of Historic Places, 
the State Critical Areas Program and any local landmark legislation the citizens 
of these properties may seek to initiate. 

Such a designation would help insure the future of this building, which is 
in a dilapidated state, standing unoccupied and vacant at the present time. In 
addition, plans are under way to construct, only one house north of this build­
ing, parking facilities for commuters utilizing the B & 0 Railroad line from 
Baltimore to Washington. These plans need not jeopardise thebuilding. A desig­
nation to the National Register of Historic Places for this area would, however, 
point out the need to make certain that the historical and/or cultural resources 
of this area would be considered in any project planned for inclusion to this 
area. 
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